
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 3rd December, 2020
at 2.00 pm. (Virtual Meeting)

A G E N D A

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting to the Barrow Borough Council YouTube 
Channel which can be viewed live via the link below.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

2.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

3.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

4.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

5.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 29th October, 2020.

5 - 10

7.  Public Participation

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting Democratic Services (ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk) or 
by telephone on (01229 876336).
 
(1) Questions and Representations

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public.

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Update Report from Working Groups 
 

11 - 14

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Cassidy (Vice-Chair)
Gawne
Assouad
Husband
W. McClure
McEwan
McLeavy (Chairman)
Mooney
Morgan
Robson
C. Thomson
Worthington

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Sandra Kemsley
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876336
spkemsley@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Tuesday, 24th November, 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 29th October, 2020
at 2.00 pm. (Virtual Meeting)

PRESENT:- Councillors McLeavy (Chairman), Cassidy (Vice-Chairman), Gawne, 
Husband, McClure, McEwan, Morgan, Robson, M. A. Thomson, C. Thomson and 
Worthington

Officers Present:- John Penfold (Corporate Support Manager) and Katie Pepper 
(Democratic and Electoral Services Assistant).

12 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Assouad and Mooney.

Councillor M. A. Thomson had attended as a substitute for Councillor Assouad.

13 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 22nd September, 2020 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

14 – Update Report from Working Groups

The Corporate Support Manager reported that the work programme for 2020/21 had 
been agreed at Full Council in July and working groups were meeting to carry out the 
work.

Member Training Working Group

A budget allocation of £5,000 had been made available for Member Training and 
Development for the financial year 2020/2021. There had been no expenditure from 
the budget that year due to COVID-19 restrictions. In the last quarter there were two 
free online workshop sessions for all Members.

Workshop No. RSVP’S No. Attended % Attended
Suicide Awareness 13 8 22.9%
North West Employers Offer 15 12 35.3%

The South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership had highlighted the number of 
high profile community cohesion issues during lockdown and a rise in recorded hate 
crime in the Borough. The Member Training Working Group had agreed to work with 
the LGA to access community cohesion training for Members in relation to: 

1.  Hate Crime/Anti-Migrants 
2.  Child Exploitation/Grooming 
3.  Online Bullying and Harassment 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



It was requested that Group Leaders and Whips actively encouraged Members to 
attend. More detailed training information would be sent to Members in due course.

Corporate Parenting Group 

The Barrow Council Plan priorities had been mapped against the Cumbria Corporate 
Parenting Principles and shared with the Management Team. The Management 
Team aimed to match relevant service plan actions into the mapping, and these 
actions would form the basis of a Council ‘offer’ which would be shared with looked 
after children, care leavers and foster families. The mapping and ‘offer’ would also 
be presented to the Cumbria Corporate Parenting Board as a model of good local 
practice, and Barrow Children and Families Partnership (Children’s Trust) for their 
information. Due to COVID19 and related issues such as emergency planning, risk 
management and staff redeployment this would be completed by the Management 
Team when time allowed.

Impact of Covid going forward

The working group discussed the progress made and Members were provided with 
information relating to: 

1.  Business Grants payments;

2.  Availability of testing in the Borough;

3.  An update on preparations for redeployment of the Nightingale facility; and

4.  Flu vaccine centre 

Members requested updates on the following: 

 Clinical data & data on hospital intakes in the area which were Covid Related. 

 Information from Public Protection regarding premises in the area and problems 
they were encountering. 

The Corporate Support manager reported that Public Protection had provided the 
following figures:

46 premises in total had contacted them regarding the opening around 4th July, they 
had received 39 complaints on premises not following the guidelines and 5 notices 
had been issued.

It was added Track and Trace was being carried out by Public Protection Staff, This 
involved them being notified on a daily basis of people in the area who had tested 
positive, staff were then allocated a number of cases each day which were uploaded 
to the Cumbria Track and Trace system. They contacted the index case and traced 
back to see who they had been in close contact with up to 48 hours before their 
symptoms started/they had their test (if they were asymptomatic). They asked for the 
contact details for those close contacts and phoned them to let them know how long 
they needed to isolate for. They uploaded all the contact details on to the system so 
everything could be traced.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



External and Internal Communications

The need for clear and timely communications had never been so important. They 
needed to ensure that they built on the improved communications delivered by an 
external provider and integrate that into improving communication of everything they 
did. It was agreed that there was a need for an updated Communications Strategy 
which should be reviewed by scrutiny before publishing.

RESOLVED:- The information be noted that Members monitored the outputs from 
the Working Groups.

15 – Update from Street Cleansing Review 

The Chair of the street cleansing working group presented the report.

Work Plan

It was agreed at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11th September, 2019 to 
include the street cleaning element of the Borough Council in the work programme 
for 2019-20, and to establish a working group to look at this area of service. 

The main reason for inclusion in the work programme was to review and assess the 
service since the contract was last awarded, to FCC in 2017. 

The working group consisted of Councillor Robson (Chair), Councillors Husband, 
McLeavy and McClure. Supporting officers were the Corporate Support Manager 
and the Corporate Support Assistant. Alec Proffitt who had a strong background in 
waste management and cleansing attended as a co-opted member.

The initial meeting on 11th November, 2019 the group agreed upon the following 
aim; ‘What, if any, impact had there been on the quality of service following a known 
reduction in the value of the street cleaning contract.’ 

The working group had met on two occasions - 11th November, 2019 and again on 
13th January, 2020. At the initial meeting the group discussed; Page 13 Agenda Item 
9.

The working group was provided with some relevant background papers and the 
senior officer responsible for street cleanliness at the time, Assistant Director - 
Community Services, attended the meeting to clarify issues raised by Members and 
answer questions. Members had also received written replies from the Assistant 
Director - Community Services by email, prior to the meeting. 

The work of the group was paused due to the Covid-19 pandemic. This report seeks 
to summarise the work done to date.

Performance

The working group asked for clarification on issues of performance.

‘What, if any, are the current performance measures/indicators we were using for the 
current contract and are they comparable with previous performance 
measures/indicators?’’ 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



At this time there was no formal performance management in place other than 
‘inspecting as they went’ and there were some examples of ad hoc recording of 
areas using before and after photographs. 

The group was informed that there was no formal requirement for Councils to report 
their cleanliness levels externally, as previously there was with national indicators 
such as NI 195. 

The group noted that they would like to see that: 

a) Performance data was collected and analysed methodically. Enabling officers to 
provide Members with up to date and accessible performance information. 

b) Performance data was comparable with previous performance data. 

c) Performance data that is comparable with national performance data or 
industry/sector standards, where applicable. The working group consider these 
to be essential in seeking to assess the benefit of changes to service and think 
they should be seen as an integral part of our service delivery and included in 
the process for any future changes to services.

The group asked about ‘the original rationale for the decisions made in the new 
contract and was there a written, report-based version of this rationale?’

The officer reported that there was no written report, it was an iterative process, and 
the rationale was based ‘entirely … on the need to reduce expenditure … to make at 
least a £250k saving.’ Page 14 Agenda Item 9.

The process, as reported to the working group, was that the proposed new contract 
‘specification was taken to senior councillors.’ 

The working group noted that they considered it important that the Council had a 
clear and transparent process and developed a clear rationale when making 
decisions such as this in the future. The working group believed it may have been 
helpful to have;

a) A clearly stated, written and accessible rationale for making the chosen change 
to service

b) A broader and more formal and inclusive discussion as part of the development 
of any rationale for change, and actual change, in future.

This conclusion b), is supported by the officer’s assertion that ‘senior councillors’ 
were consulted during an iterative process. The working group believed a wider, 
transparent and inclusive process would be beneficial to future decision making.

Cost Savings

The working group acknowledged the challenge for officers in making such 
significant reductions in the value of contracts and also that the required reductions 
were achieved, as required. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Elected Members views 

As part of the working group they invited all elected members to share any case 
studies or experiences they had of resident interactions since the transition to an in-
house service. No responses were received to this request.

Future Scrutiny

The working group suggested that there were outstanding issues relating to street 
cleanliness that they would like Overview and Scrutiny to continue to review. Some 
of these issues were; bring sites; clarity for the public and members around the 
street cleaning schedule.

It was added that a sample study of the strategic road network had taken place in 
Barrow and they had be given a grade B.

RESOLVED:- To note the report and agree to continue the review.

The meeting closed at 2.22 p.m.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
3rd December 2020

Update report from Working Groups

 
Report from:  Corporate Support Manager

Report Author: Corporate Support Manager

Wards:  All wards may be impacted

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The work programme for 2020/2021 has been agreed at Full Council, working 

groups are meeting to carry out the work. 

2.0 Recommendation 
Members monitor the outputs from the working groups

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Work Plan

The work programme was agreed at Full Council in July, the following reviews were 
proposed and Members were supportive that this was an appropriate work programme. 
Work groups for the following items are established.

Street Cleansing

This review has been paused whilst discussions between Council Officers and FCC 
Environment Managers regarding the delivery of the contract are on-going.

Impact of Covid going forward

The work group met on 23rd November to discuss the progress made and Members 
were provided with information relating to: 

 The latest Business Grants process following the second national lockdown

 Availability of testing in the Borough

 The introduction of Covid Marshals

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



Members requested updates on the follow:

 Clinical data & data on hospital intakes in the area which were Covid Related.
 Information from Public Protection regarding premises in the area and the 

support the Council has provided to prepare them for reopening. 
 A detailed update on the provision of Covid Marshals

Key Priority – People.

External and internal communications

The need for clear and timely communications has never been so important. We need 
to ensure that we build on the improved communications delivered by an external 
provider and integrate that into improving communication of everything we do. The work 
group met with the Council’s Chief Executive Officer and there is a summary of the 
discussion below.

 Internal comms is still a challenge.  We can do more to build a better comms 
relationship across the Council. There is a recognition that the Council would benefit 
from an internal Comms Officer to link with staff and Members. 

 External comms is currently managed through a contract. Due to the Covid-19 
pandemic, this contract has been extended until 31 March 2021 using Coronavirus 
funding. The contract includes a broader range of skills and experience than would 
be available with just one Comms Officer appointed by the Council, and there are 
other advantages such as holiday cover, more than one person involved with 
varying skill sets.

 The Director of People and Place and the Comms contractor are developing a 
Media Protocol and process which will include how they could involve and engage 
members and lead members. 

 Our IT Strategy is currently being updated. It should detail the factors that affect the 
Council’s investment in and use of technology, hardware and software 
management, information management systems, GDPR, the Council website, and 
customer ‘front door’ through our public facing digital platforms. 

 Timescale – it was agreed that due to waiting for completion of other tasks e.g. 
budget planning, Media Protocol and the development of a new IT Strategy, that the 
Working Group should wait until the new year before progressing any further with 
this review. 

It was agreed that there was a need for an updated Communications Strategy which 
should be reviewed by scrutiny before publishing. 

Key Priority – People.

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



Outside bodies

This review will take place at a later date

Key Priority – People.

4.0 Consultation 

We do not need undertake a consultation at this stage.

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 Additional information is required before we can consider alternative options

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Creating a vibrant, safe & welcoming place where people want to live.

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1.1 This is an update report and there aren’t any implications at this stage

Legal 

7.1.2 This is an update report and there aren’t any implications at this stage

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
7.1.1 This is an update report and there aren’t any implications at this stage

Equality and Diversity 
7.1.1 This is an update report and there aren’t any implications at this stage

Risk
Consequence Controls required 

N/A  .

Risk Consequence Controls required 
N/A

Contact Officers 
Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk

Page 13

Agenda Item 8

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk


Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 None

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available 
1
2

Add links where possible

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



Member Training Working Group

The Member Training Working Group recently hosted the North West Employers 
session on Local Government Reorganisation for all members.

The group have significantly increased the number of all member briefings on issues 
of interest such as a devolution session for all members and a planned session 
about Piel Island.  There is another devolution session planned for all members in 
December. 

The following online sessions are also planned:

 Asset Awareness (internal training)
 Councillors Code of Conduct
 Hate crime/anti-immigrant tensions
 Child exploitation/grooming
 Online bullying

Corporate Parenting Group

Updated draft Safeguarding procedures have been developed and shared with the 
council’s Management Team taking account of the requirements, policies, 
procedures, roles and responsibilities of the Cumbria Safeguarding Children Board 
(CSCB). Included in the council’s Safeguarding Children Policy is a paragraph on the 
Council’s role as a Corporate Parent which states:

All Councils, and in particular the Councillors, have a responsibility to ensure the 
needs of looked after children are met. This starts with a full awareness of their 
‘corporate parenting’ role. This includes an understanding of the profile of children in 
care in the district and the impact the council’s decisions have on those children in 
care and care leavers. Members should act as champions of the needs of these 
children and ensure that services meet those needs.

We recognise that we are not the accountable and statutory body for children who 
are looked after and care leavers and that our offer will be limited but we do have 
something to offer in terms of housing and leisure. Life Leisure are members of the 
Corporate Parenting Group and are considering offering taster sessions to care 
leavers when COVID restrictions are lifted. 

With the support of Cllr Shaun Blezard, Lead Member for Arts, Culture and Leisure, 
we have made an initial approach to those cultural organisations identified in the 
Council Plan who could help us to develop and promote a cultural offer for children 
who are looked after and care leavers. This includes The Forum, the Dock Museum 
and Barra Culture. Barrow Park is another area of consideration in terms of places to 
go and things to do which we will explore in the future. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Update Report from Working Groups
	Scrutiny Update - Nov 2020


